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COCOA PROCESSING COMPANY PLC

ANNUAL REPORTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
TO THE MEMBERS OF
COCOA PROCESSING COMPANY PLC

The Directors present their report and the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30
September 2022.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view of
Cocoa Processing Company Plc, comprising the statements of financial position as at 30 September 2022,
and the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year ended, and the
notes to the financial statements which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner
required by the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992). In addition, the Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the report of the Directors.

The Directors are also respensible for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and for maintaining adequate accounting records and an effective system of risk management.

The Auditor is responsible for reporting on whether the financial statements give a true and fair view in
accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.

GOING CONCERN CONSIDERATION AND STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY

The Company incurred a loss of US$12.06 m (2021: US$15.09 m) for the year ended 30 September 2022,
and as of that date its current liabilities exceeded its current assets by US$69.34 m (2021: US$113.15 m).

A substantial part of the Company’s liabilities is due to a syndicate of banks led by Absa and Prudential Banks,
USS27.44m and USS2.76m respectively. During the year, the Company defaulted on the principal and
interest repayment to respective banks.

The Company's loss-making position is significantly driven by unavailability of cocoa beans to process due to
insufficient cashflow during the year.

COCOBOD as at 30 September 2022 has converted loan of US$32m and trade accounts payable of US$55
as deposit for shares pending finalisation of a legal requirement to recognise it as stated capital.

The Directors have been in discussions with Africa Export-Import Bank (Afreximbank) to obtain a US$86.7m
loan facility. Management plans to use this loan to settle amounts due to the syndicate of banks, support its
working capital requirements and retool its property, plant, and equipment to expand production capacity.
Management expects the agreement to be signed by December 2023 and the first tranche disbursed by
January 2024. The ability of the company to return to profitability and also settle the liabilities due within
twelve months is dependent of the Afreximbank loan. At the date of this report, discussions with Afreximbank
have not yet been finalised.

The above conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern and therefore, may be unable to realize its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

The Directors have considered the following matters, in combination with the above mitigation plans, in
making the going concern assumption:
> Resumption of cocoa beans supply by COCOBOD on regular basis. _
» New turnaround strategies - reduction of cost, investment in infrastructure, expansion of revenue
base and product market. -




COCOA PROCESSING COMPANY PLC
ANNUAL REPORTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF
COCOA PROCESSING COMPANY PLC

The financial statements are prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern.
This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of
assets and settlement of liabilities will occur in the ordinary course of business

NATURE OF BUSINESS/PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is registered to manufacture high-quality chocolates, confectionery, and semi-finished cocoa
products such as cocoa butter, cocoa liquor, cocoa cake, and cocoa powder from premium cocoa beans grown
in Ghana,

There was no change in the nature of business of the Company during the year.
HOLDING COMPANY

The Company is 57.73% owned by Ghana Cocoa Board (COCOBOD), a Company incorporated in Ghana.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS/BUSINESS REVIEW

The financial results of the Company for the year ended 30 September 2022 are set out in the financial
statements, highlights of which are as follows:

2022 2021

uss uss

Loss before tax (12,945,825) (15,169,927)
Loss after tax (12,058,964) (15,088,714)
Total assets 140,964,348 160,034,555
Total liabilities 118,770,247 209,620,970
Total equity 22,194,101 (49,586,415)

The Directors do not recommend the payment of dividend.

PARTICULARS OF ENTRIES IN THE INTERESTS REGISTER DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

No Director had any interest in contracts and proposed contracts with the Company during the year under
review, hence there were no entries recorded in the Interests Register as required by Sections
194(6),195(1)@a) and 196 of the Companies Act 2019, (Act 992).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Information regarding Directors’ interests in ordinary shares of the Company and remuneration is disclosed
in note 24 to the financial statements. No Director has interest in any shares or loan stock of the Company.
Related party transactions and balances are also disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

No expenditure was incurred in the period under review (2021 :nil) was spent under the Company's social
responsibility programme.
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ANNUAL REPORTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

TO THE MEMBERS OF

COCOA PROCESSING COMPANY PLC

BOARD QF DIRECTORS

Profile

Executive

Qualification

Qutside board and
management position

Nana Agyenim Boateng

Diploma, Transport & Fleet Management

Managing Director of CPC

Non-executive

Dr. Kwaku Owusu Baah

Agriculture Economist
MSc Agriculture
BSc Agriculture

Former Director of Economic
Studies, Inter-African Coffee
Organization '
Currently Technical Advisor
to Government of Canada

Hon Francis Manu-Adabor

BA Hons (KNUST)
MSC (University College, London)

Member of Parliament

Prof. Douglas Boateng

BSc. Transport Planning and Management,
Cranfield University.

MSc. Logistics in Manufacturing Systems,
University of Central England.

Doctor of Engineering, University of Warwick
Diploma in Company Direction, Institute of
Directors

Board Chairman, Public
Procurement Authority

Mr Vincent Okyere

BA Economics

Managing Director of CMC

Chartered Accountant

Akomeah Master's degree, Economic Policy
Management

Mr Emmanuel Ray Ankrah | Post Graduate Diploma, Strategic Financial | Deputy CEO (Finance
Management &Admin), COCOBOD

Mrs Philomena Okyere

Associate Member, Chartered Institute of
Professional Financial Managers

Board of MASLOC.

Mr Theodore Matey Tackey

He holds an BSC in chemical Engineering
from (KNUST)

Professional & Managerial
Staff union Chairman of CPC.

Ms Alexandra Totoe

Graduate, Emile Wolf
Accountancy, United Kingdom

College  of

Fellow - Association Chartered Accountants
Accountant (ACCA)

Member - Institute of Chartered Accountants
Accountant (ICA)

Nominee of the Ministry of

Finance/State interest &
Government Authority
(MoF/SIGA)

Age category

Number of directors

Up to - 40 years 1
41 - 60 years 5
Above 60 years 3
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF '
COCOA PROCESSING COMPANY PLC

ROLE OF THE BOARD . ;

The Directors are responsible for the long-term success of the Company, determine the strategic direction of
the Company and review operating, financial and risk performance. There is a formal schedule of matters
reserved for the board of Directors, including approval of the Company’s annual business plan, the Company's
strategy, acquisitions, disposals and capital expenditure projects above certain thresholds, all guarantees,
treasury policies, the financial statements, the Company's dividend policy, transactions invalving the issue or
purchase of Company shares, borrowing powers, appointments to the Board, alterations to the memorandum
and articles of association, legal actions brought by or against the Company, and the scope of delegations to
Board committees, subsidiary boards and the management committee. Responsibility for the development of
policy and strategy and operational management is delegated to the Executive Directors and a management
committee, which as at the date of this report includes the Executive Directors.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Directors have overall responsibility for the Company's internal control systems and annually reviews
their effectiveness, including a review of financial, operational, compliance and risk management controls.
The implementation and maintenance of the risk management and internal control systems are the
responsibility of the Executive Directors and other senior management. The systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Directors have reviewed the effectiveness of
the internal control systems, including controls related to financial, operational, and reputational risks
identified by the Company as at the reporting date and no significant failings or weaknesses were identified
during this review.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

On appointment to the Board, Directors are provided with a full, formal and tailored programme of induction,
to familiarise them with the Company's business, the risks and strategic challenges the Company faces, and
the economic, competitive, legal and regulatory environment in which the Company operates.

There were, however, no formal capacity building training programs organised during the year.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

The Company has established appropriate conflicts authorisation procedures, whereby actual or potential

conflicts are regularly reviewed, and authorisations sought as appropriate. During the year, no such conflicts
arose, and no such authorisations were sought.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF
COCOA PROCESSING COMPANY PLC

BOARD BALANCE AND INDEPENDENCE

The composition of the board of Directors and its Committees is regularly reviewed to ensure that the balance
and mix of skills, independence, knowledge, and experience is maintained. The Board considers that the
Chairman is independent on appointment and all non-Executive Directors are independent as it pertains to
the management of the Company. The continuing independent and objective judgement of the non-Executive
Directors have been confirmed by the Board of Directors.

AUDITOR

The Audit Committee has responsibility delegated from the board of Directors for making recommendations
on the appointment, reappointment, removal and remuneration of the external auditor

The Auditors, Ernst & Young, Chartered Accountants, have expressed their willingness to continue in office
pursuant to Section 139(5d) of the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992),

AUDIT FEES
At 30 September 2022, the amount payable in respect of audit fees was USS$37,000 (2021: US$37,000).
APPROVAL OF THE REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Report of the Directors of Cocoa Processing Company Plc, was approved by the Board of Directors on
- v 2023 @nd were signed on their behalf by:

JIGNATURE ~ SIGNATURE

foonlte Or B I Ancnd
NAME : NAME
1lealron3 lﬂ(c}lwzg




Ernst & Young Chartered Accountants Tel: +233 302 772001
60 Rangoon Lane +233 302 772091
- Cantonments-City, Accra, Ghana ey.com ~ -
P. 0. Box KA 16009
Airport Accra, Ghana

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF
COCOA PROCESSING COMPANY PLC

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Cocoa Processing Company Plc set out on pages 11 to 56
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 September 2022, and the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies. ; :

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Cocoa Processing Company Plc as at 30 September 2022, and its financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner
required by of the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992)

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA
Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in
Ghana, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these reguirements and
the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 30 of the financial statements, which indicates that the Company incurred a
net loss of US$12.6 m (2021: US$15.09 m) during the year ended 30 September 2022 and, as of that
date, the Company’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by US$69.34million (2021: US$113
million). As stated in the note 30 these conditions, along with other matters, indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern and therefore may be unable to realise its assets and settle its liabilities in the ordinary course
of business. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements. The result of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
financial statements.

We=mber firm of Srast & Voung Glesal Limitad,
Parinass: Fardinand A. Gunn, Pamela Doz Jerdaz, iszac Miatiah Sarpong, Priscilla Karanteng-Syasi, Emmanuzl Adeliahlar, Kwadjo Yaboah



. The Key Audit Matter How thesmatter was addressed in our audit

Employee Benefit Obligations

As at 30 September 2022, the Company | Our procedure included assessing the competency,
calculated and recorded defined benefit plan | objectivity and capabilities of the independent actuary
liabilities of US$2.87 million for its qualified engaged by the Company.

employees, which is significant on the
Company's overall statement of financial | We engaged our internal specialist to assess the
position. These benefits were made available to appropriateness of the method and assumptions used
the employees based on collective bargaining | in the computation as included on the actuarial report.
agreement with employee union. Significant '
estimates are made in determining the key | We have also performed the following procedures,
assumptions used in the determination of the amongst others to assess the underlying data provided
defined benefit obligations, as a result the | to the actuary in determining the obligation
Management engaged an independent actuary

to assist them in the computation of the defined * We tested samples of the employees’ details
benefit plan liabilities. used in the computation of the defined benefit
plan liabilities to the Human resource records
We considered the computation of the defined * We evaluated key assumptions used in the
benefit plan liabilities to be a key audit matter valuation, in particular the discount rate,
due to the magnitude of the amounts, future salaries increases, and mortality
management judgement applied, and the rates, with the support of our actuarial
technical expertise required to determine these specialist
amounts. Management has made appropriate ¢ We also considered the adequacy of the
disclosure on this on Note 15 in the financial disclosures made on the defined benefit plan
statements. liabilities in Note 15 to the financial
statements

Other Information

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises information
included in the 56-page document titled “Annual Reports and Financial Statements for the year ended 30
September 2022". Other information does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our respansibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Blzmber flivm ol Evnst & Young Global Limitad.
Partnars : Fardinand A. Guni, Pamala Des Sordes, (3aa¢ Miatish Sarpong, Priscilla Koranteng-Gvasi, Sramanusl Adelahion, Wwradie ¥ikoah




Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statement’s

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required by the Companies
Act, 2019 (Act 992) and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. '

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
processes.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral,

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern,

of E7nst & Youna Glebal Limitad.
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» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclgsures, and whether the financial statements represent the ynderlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Company’s audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992) requires that in carrying out our audit we consider and report on the
following matters. We confirm that:

)]

i)

i)

iv)

V)

We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our
examination of those books;

The statement of financial position and the statement of comprehensive income (statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income) of the Company are in agreement with the
underlying books of account;

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
accounts give the information required under the Act, in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit
or loss for the financial year then ended;

We are independent of the Company pursuant to section 143 of the Companies Act, 2019 (Act
992).

The Engagement Partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Ferdinand Gunn
(ICAG/P/1149).

hch p\{t\/k v

Ernst & Young (ICAG/F/2023;’12€}—§

Chartered Accountants

Accra

Date:

i%l oy (1023
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COCOA PROCESSING COMPANY PLC

ANNUAL REPORTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

Assets
Non-current assets

Property! plant and equipment

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Current tax assets

Trade and other receivables
Prepayments

Fixed deposit investments
Cash and cash equivalents

Total Current assets
Total assets

Equity and Liabilities
Equity

Share capital

Deposit for share
Revaluation reserve
Fair value reserve
Retained earnings

Total equity
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings

Employee benefit obligations
Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Bank overdraft

Trade and other payables
Loans and borrowings
Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

The financial statements of the Company were approved by the B
d were sugned on the/bgﬂalf by:

2.5 /’I
wmm%

ey

Note

=

6(c)

10
11
12(a)

16(a,b)
16(e)
16(c)
16(d)

14(b)
15
6(d)

12(b)
13
14(b)

2022
uss

* 114,290,527
114,290,527
17,673,939
19,299
4,933,760
528,524
2,707,841
810,458
26,673,821

140,964,348

26,071,630
87,000,000
53,113,126

7,041,211

(151,031,866)

22,194,101

1,985,300
2,871,650
17,899,918

22,756,868

1,932,743
47,317,579
46,763,057
96,013,379

118,770,247

140,964,348

SIGNATURE

NAME

The notes on pages 16 to 56 form an integral part of these financial statements.

ITECLOTS ON et sermees

VvoSe

2021
uss

120,088,574
120,088,574
26,787,563
17,363
8,910,416
435,188
2,644,210
1,151,241
39,945,981

160,034,555

26,071,630
54,415,410
11,732,644
(141,806,099)

(49,586,415)

33,556,428
4,097,967
18,870,111

26,524,506

1,192,653
112,542,230
39,361,581
153,096,464
209,620,970

160,034,555

2023

= L7 A

121 elre2z2
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COCOA PROCESSING COMPANY PLC

ANNUAL REPORTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS _

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

2022 2021

’ Note uss uss
Revenue from contracts with customers 17(a) 43,489,657 41,835,142
Cost of sales 18 (47,363,968) (46,828,569)
Gross loss (3,874,311 (4,993,427)
Other income 19 1,502,886 471,579
Selling and distribution costs 31 (804,574) (686,492)
General and administrative expenses 32 (4,569,682) (4,219,164)
Impairment reversal/(loss) on trade and other
receivables 27@)X0H 533,851 (391,925)
Operating loss (7,211,830) (9,819,429)
Finance income 23 50,072 56,411
Finance costs 24 (5,784,067) (5,406,909)
Loss before tax 20 (12,945,825) (15,169,927)
Income tax expense 6(a) 886,861 81,213
Loss for the year (12,058,964) (15,088,714)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit liability, net of
tax 15(b) 298,464 170,503
Exchange gain/(loss) on defined benefit liability 1,149,117 (3.327)
Change in estimate on deferred tax for revaluation
surplus 6(a) 83,332 3,497,866
Other Comprehensive income 1,530,913 3,665,042
Total comprehensive income (10,528,051) (11,423,672)
Loss per share
Basic loss per share 25 (0.0059) (0.0074)
Diluted loss per share 25 (0.0059) (0.0074)

The notes on pages 16 to 56 form an integral part of these financial statements.

12
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COCOA PROCESSING COMPANY PLC

ANNUAL REPORTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss for the year

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Finance Cost

Impairment (reversal)/loss on trade receivables
Write down of inventory

Employee benefit obligations

Unrealised exchange differences

Operating Cashflows before working capital changes

Changes in working capital

o} Inventories

o Trade and other receivables
o Prepayments

o Trade and other payables

Cash flows (used in)/generated from operatiohs

Employee benefits paid
Interest paid
Income taxes paid

Net cash flows (used in)/generated from operating

activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from Loans and borrowings

Repayments of borrowings

Net cash from financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year
Effect of movement in exchange rates on cash held

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Note

7
24
270
8
15(b)

14(a)
6(c)

14(a)

12

12

2022
+ USS

(12,945,825)

6,022,040
5,784,067
(533,851)

189,482
(1,944,620)

(3,428,705)

9,113,624
3,884,900
(93,335)
9,221,397)

255,087
(95,036)

(573,966)
(1,936)

(415,851)

(223,993)
(223,993)

366,366
(622,915)

(256,549)

(896,393)

2,602,798
(120,849)

1,585,556

The notes on pages 16 to 56 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2021
uss

(15,169,927

5,977,402
5,406,909
391,925
(66,046)
233,383
82,664

(3,143,690)
(5,897,054)
(8,420,868)
4,758,337
17,995,444
5,292,169
(78,214)

(375,989)
(11,080)

4,826,886

(3,861,617)

(3,861,617)

186,318
371,380

185,062

780,207

1,860,820
(38,229)

2,602,798
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COCOA PROCESSING COMPANY PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS _ .
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 ’

(i

REPORTING ENTITY

Cocoa Processing Company Plc is a Company registered and domiciled in Ghana. The financial
statements at and for the year ended 30 September 2022 relate to the individual financial statements
of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and in the manner

. required by the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992).

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the following
material items in the statement of financial position:

e Land and building category in Property, plant and equipment, measured at revalued amounts
» Defined benefit obligations measured at the present value of the future benefits to employees.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in US Dollar (USS) which is the Company's functional currency.
Except otherwise indicated, the financial information presented has been rounded off to the nearest
UsS Dollar.

Use of estimates and judgement

In preparing the financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of the Company's accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income, and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are
recognised prospectively.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties at 30 September 2022 that have a
significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the next financial year is included in the following notes:

—  Note 15 - Measurement of defined benefit obligations: Key actuarial assumptions

—  Note 27(a)(i) - Measurement of expected credit loss (ECL) allowance for trade receivables: Key
assumptions in determining the average loss rate

16
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COCOA PROCESSING COMPANY PLC

_NOTES TO,THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) _

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

2.

d.

(a)

(b)
(i

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT'D)

Use of estimates and judgement (cont'd)
Measurement of fair vafﬂes

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value,
for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company regularly reviews significant
unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the Company uses observable market data as far
as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in the fair value hierarchy based on the
inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

o Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

o Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

o Level 3: inputs for the asset and liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognised transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

CHANGES IN SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A number of new standards and interpretations are effective from 1 October 2021, but they do not
have a material effect on the Company’s financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been consistently applied to all periods presented in these
financial statements.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions, and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, are recognised in profit or [oss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated at historical exchange rates, if held at historical cost
or exchange rates at the date that fair value was determined, if held at fair value and the resulting
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or (oss.

Foreign currency gains and losses are generally recognised in general and administrative expenses or
other income depending on whether the net exchange difference results in a gain or a loss.

Financial instruments
Recognition and initial measurement

Trade and other receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are
originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

17
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COCOA PROCESSING COMPANY PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

4.
(b)
(i

(i)

=

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Financial instruments (cont’d)

Recognition and initial measurément(conf’d)

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial
liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction price.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at amortised cost. These financial
assets comprise trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes
its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are
reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL;

o it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and
o its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets - Business model assessment
The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed, and information is
provided to management.
Financial assets - Business model assessment
The information considered includes:

o the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in
practice. These include whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual
interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the
financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising
cash flows through the sale of the assets;

o how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company's management;

o the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within
that business model) and how those risks are managed;

o how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on the
fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

o the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for
such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

18
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COCOA PROCESSING COMPANY PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

4.
(b)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Financial instruments (cont’d)

Financial assets - Business model*assessment (cont'd) J

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are
not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company's continuing recognition of the
assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets - Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest

For the purposes of this assessment, 'principal' is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. 'Interest' is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit
risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other
basic lending risks and costs (e.qg. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features:

prepayment and extension features; and

terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse
features).

o O 0 0

A prepayment feature is consistent with the sole payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of
the contract.

Financial assets - Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest

Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a discount or premium to its contractual par-amount, a
feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual
par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable
additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair
value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial assets - Subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities - Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL). A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a
derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured
at fair value and net gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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_NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

“FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 . *

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

(b) Financial instruments (cont'd)
Financial liabilities - Classification, sLbsequent measurement and gains and losses (cont'd)
Financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables, bank overdrafts and loans and borrowings.
Short term payables with no stated interest rate are measured at the transaction price if the effect of
discounting is immaterial.

(iii) Derecognition
Financial assets
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cashflows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred, or
it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not
retain control over the transferred financial asset. Any interest in such derecognised financial assets
that is created or retained by the Company is recognised as a separate asset,
Financial liabilities
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified
and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial
liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.
On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and
the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred, or liabilities assumed) is recognised
in profit or loss.

(iv) Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset the amounts and
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Income and expenses are presented on a net basis when permitted by accounting standards, or for
gains and losses arising from a Company of similar transactions.

© Impairment

() Non-derivative financial assets

Financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs, except for bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected
life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition are measured at
12-month ECLs.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and gualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-looking information.
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COCOA PROCESSING COMPANY PLC

 NQTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

i

(©)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Impairment (cont'd)

¥ *

Financial instruments and contract assets

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more
than 30 days past due.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:
o the customer is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by
the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

o thefinancial asset is mare than 270 days past due.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the
12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less
than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Company is exposed to credit risk.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present

value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance

with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are

credit-impaired. A financial asset is 'credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a

detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

o significant financial difficulty of the customer;

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

o a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 270 days past due;

o restructuring of a debt or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise; or

o itis probable that the customer will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

29,



]

i

= - & L | - = == ] L] == L ] - . R g L] =

C-,OCOA PROCESSING COMPANY PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

4.

©

(d

(e)

()
O

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Impairment (cont'd)
Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable
expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company
individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on whether
there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company expects no significant recovery from the
amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.
If any such indication exists then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is
recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or Cash Generating Unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable
amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs
to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows discounted to their present value using
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset or CGU.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). The impairment test can also be performed
on a single asset when the fair value less cost to sell can be reliably determined.

Allimpairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent
that the assets carrying amount does not exceed the amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Share capital
o Ordinary shares

Proceeds from the issue of ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from equity.

e Preference shares

Redeemable preference shares are classified as equity, because they bear discretionary dividends, do
not contain any obligations to deliver cash or other financial assets and do not require settlementin a
variable number of the Company's equity instruments. Discretionary dividends thereon are recognised
as equity distributions on approval by the Company’s shareholders.

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognised and subsequently measured at cost with
the exception of land and building which are subsequently measured at revalued amounts less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of
self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, capitalised borrowing costs
and any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended
use. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as
part of that equipment.
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COCOA PROCESSING COMPANY PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 - -

4.
®
0

(i)

(ifi)

(iv)

(v)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)
Recognition and measurement (cont’d)

An increase in the carrying amount of an item of land and building as a result of a revaluation is
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under a revaluation reserve.
The gain is however, recognized in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation loss of the
same asset previously recognized in profit or loss.

Decreases in the carrying amount of an asset that offset previous increases of the asset are charged
against the revaluation reserve. Any additional decrease is charged to profit or loss.

Valuations are performed at most every five (5) years to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset
does not differ materially from its carrying amount.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment (calculated as the difference
between the net proceeds from disposal and carrying amount of the item) is recognised in profit or
loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the
day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss, as incurred.

Spare parts

Spare parts and stand-by and servicing equipment held by the Company are generally classified as
inventories. However, if major spare parts and stand-by and servicing equipment are expected to be
used for more than one period or can be used only in connection with an item of property, plant and
equipment, then they are classified as property, plant and equipment.

Capital work-in-progress

Items of property, plant and equipment under construction are stated at initial cost and depreciated
from the date the asset is made available for use over its estimated useful life. Assets are transferred
from capital work-in-progress to an appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and in a location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off the gross value of items of property, plant and equipment less
their estimated residual values using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives.
Depreciation is generally recognised in profit or loss unless the amount is included in the carrying
amount of another asset. ltems of property, plant and equipment are depreciated from the date they
are installed and available for use.
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COCOA PROCESSING COMPANY PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

4,

)

»

)

@

h)

M

0

(i)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)
Depreciation (cont'd)

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods
are as follows:

Land, buildings and road works # 50 years
Staff bungalows and flats & 50 years
Plant and machinery - 20 years
Motor vehicles - 4 years
Laboratory equipment = 5 years
Office furniture and equipment | 5 5 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realisable value. The cost of all classifications of
inventories are determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFQ) principle.

The cost of inventories includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and other costs
incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition. In the case of manufactured
inventories and work in progress, cost includes an appropriate share of production overheads based
on normal operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Inventories are recognised in
profit or loss when goods are sold or there is a write down of inventories.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank adjusted
for reconciling items and cash in hand, short-term fixed deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, bank overdrafts which are payable on demand. All of the components of cash and cash
equivalents form an integral part of the company's cash management.

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised
for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to
pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be
estimated reliably.

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution
plans are expensed as the related service is provided.
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COCOA PROCESSING COMPANY PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022~

4,

(b)

(i)

)

(k)

Q)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Employee benefits (cont'd)

Social security

Under a national pension scheme, the Company contributes 13% of employee’s basic salary to the
Social Security and National Insurance Trust (SSNIT) for employee pensions. The Company’s obligation
is limited to the relevant contributions, which have been recognised in the financial statements. The
pension liabilities and obligations, however, rest with SSNIT.

Staff provident fund

The Company has a provident fund scheme for staff to which the Company contributes 10% and 8% of
the basic salaries of junior and senior staff respectively. Obligations under the plan are limited to the
relevant contributions, which are charged to profit or loss as and when they fall due.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The
liabilities of the Company arising from defined benefit obligations and related current service costs are
determined on an actuarial basis using the projected unit of credit method. The Company uses this
method to determine the present value of defined benefit obligations, related current service costs
and, where applicable, past service costs. Actuarial gains and losses, which arise mainly from changes
in actuarial assumptions and differences between actuarial assumptions and what actually occurred,
are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income.

The Company determines the net interest expense on the net defined benefits liability for the period
by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the
annual period to the defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit
liability during the period as a result of contributions and benefits payments. Net interest expense and
other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The Company
recognises revenue when performance obligation is satisfied per IFRS 15.

Information about the Company’s accounting policies relating to contracts with customers is provided
in Note 17.

Finance income and finance costs

Finance income comprises interest income on invested funds or funds held in bank accounts. Interest
income is recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings. Borrowing costs that are not directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are recognised in profit
or loss using the effective interest method.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which
it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions
with any related Company. All operating segments results are reviewed regularly by the Board of
Directors, identified as the chief operating decision-maker, to make decisions about resources to be
allocated to the segment and assess its performance and for which internal financial information is
available. Segment results that are reported to the Board of Directors include items directly
attributable to a segment as well as those that can be aliocated on a reasonable basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 )

4.

(m)

n)

(i)

(i)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is
determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of
current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received
that reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current tax also includes any tax arising from dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset and
when the tax assets and liabilities relate to current taxes levied by the same taxation authority or either
the same entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle on a net basis.

Deferred tax

Deferred taxis recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred
tax is not recognised for temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction that is not a business combination and that affects either accounting nor taxable profit or
loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
they can be used. Future taxable profits are determined based on business plans of the Company.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefits will be realised, such reductions are reversed when the
probability of future taxable profits improve.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in which
the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reverse, using fax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority.
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. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 -

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

(o) Government grant
Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance thit the grant will be received, and
all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed. The entity has a grant from the government of Ghana in respect to a proportion of the interest
expense of its loan from Prudential Bank Plc. This is recognised as part of other income in its financial
statements.

(p) New standards and interpretations issued and not yet effective

The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of
issuance of the company's financial statements are disclosed below. The company intends to adopt these
new and amended standards and interpretations, if applicable, when they become effective.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

In May 2017, the IASB issued IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (IFRS 17), a comprehensive new accounting
standard for insurance contracts covering recognition and measurement, presentation, and disclosure.
Once effective, IFRS 17 will replace IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (IFRS 4) that was issued in 2005. IFRS 17
applies to all types of insurance contracts (i.e., life, non-life, direct insurance, and re-insurance), regardless
of the type of entities that issue them, as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with
discretionary participation features.

A few scope exceptions will apply. The overall objective of IFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model for
insurance contracts that is more useful and consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in IFRS
4 which are largely based on grandfathering previous local accounting policies, IFRS 17 provides a
comprehensive model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects. The core of IFRS
17 is the general model, supplemented by:

» A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee approach)

> A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts

IFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with comparative figures
required. Early application is permitted, provided the entity also applies IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 on or before the
date it first applies IFRS 17. This standard is not applicable to the Company.

Amendments to IAS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

In January 2021, the IASB issued amendments to paragraphs 69 to 76 of IAS 1 to specify the requirements

for classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments clarify:

> What is meant by a right to defer settlement?

» That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period

» That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right

» That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument would the terms
of a liability not impact its classification.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and must
be applied retrospectively. The Company has assessed and the impact of the amendments will not have any
material impact on the company's financial statements.

Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to IAS 8

In February 2022, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 8, in which it introduces a definition of ‘accounting
estimates'. The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes
in accounting policies and the correction of errors. Also, they clarify how entities use measurement
technigues and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply:
to changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of
that period. Earlier application is permitted as long as this fact is disclosed.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the company's financial statements.

27



-_-n-m-------ur.!-m

] L i I J - J . e 1 i
4]

onw

COCOA PROCESSING COMPANY PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

+

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

4,

(p)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
New standards and interpretations issued and not yet effective (cont’d)
Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2

In February 2022, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making
Materiality Judgements, in which it provides guidance and examples to help entities apply materiality
judgements to accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by
replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a
requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply
the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments to IAS 1 are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 with
earlier application permitted. Since the amendments to the Practice Statement 2 provide non-
mandatory guidance on the application of the definition of material to accounting policy information,
an effective date for these amendments is not necessary.

The company Is currently revisiting their accounting policy information disclosures to ensure
consistency with the amended requirements.

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to
IAS 12

In May 2022, the Board issued amendments to IAS 12, which narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception under IAS 12, so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.

The amendments should be applied to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented. In addition, at the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented, a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax
liability should also be recognized for all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with
leases and decommissioning obligations.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the company’s financial statements,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 ' ’ -

5. OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Company has the following two divisions which are its reportable segments. These segments offer
different products and hence require different production processes and markefing strategies.

Products and services

- Cocoa liguor, cocoa butter, cocoa cake, cocoa
powder

- Tolling services

Confectionery - Confectionery products

Reportable segment

Cocoa

Information related to each reportable segment is set out below. Segment profit or loss before tax is
used to measure performance because management believes that this information is the most
relevant in evaluating the results of the respective segments relative to other entities that operate in

m m | W ™ m @ M W 5N - . . M A A . M N B W - e e

the same industries.

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities
Reportable
segments

Cocoa Confectionery Total
Year ended 30 September 2022 uss uUss uss
Revenue 34,667,668 8,821,989 43,489,657
Cost of Sales (40,552,038) (6,811,930) (47,363,968)
Gross (loss)/Profit (5,884,370) 2,010,059 (3,874,311)
Other income 722,280 780,606 1,502,886
Selling and distribution costs (634,297) (170,277) (804,574)
General and administrative expenses (3,418,093) (1,151,589) (4,569,682)
Impairment (reversal)/loss on trade and other
Receivables (533,851 = (533,851)
Operating (loss)/Profit (8,680,629) 1,468,799 (7,211,830)
Finance income 50,072 3 50,072
Finance costs (5,049,084) (734,984) (5,784,068)
Depreciation (4,830,048) (1,191,992) (6,022,040)
Loss before tax (13,679,642 733,816 (12,945,826)
Reportable segment assets 112,771,478 28,192,870 140,964,348
Additions to property, plant and
equipment 2,896,212 965,404 3,861,616
Reportable segment liabilities 99,111,128 21,756,101 120,867,229
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COCOA PROCESSING COMPANY PLC

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

5. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONT'D)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CO_NTINUED)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (cont'd)

Year ended 30 September 2021

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross loss

Other income

Selling and distribution costs
General and administrative expenses
Impairment loss on trade and other
‘receivables

Operating loss

Finance income

Finance costs

Depreciation

Loss before tax

Reportable segment assets
Additions to property, plant and
equipment

Reportable segment liabilities

(b) Analysis of revenue by product

Cocoa segment
Cocoa butter
Cocoa liquor
Cocoa cake
Cocoa powder

Confectionery segment
Confectionery products

Reportable segments

Cocoa
uss

33,144,764
(40,459,144)
(7,314,380)
288,594
(464,848)
(2,863,104)

(10,353,738)
56,411
(4,365,588)
(4,746,990)
(14,662,915)

128,027,644

2,896,212
171,869,447

»

Confectionery Total
UsS uss
8,690,378 41,835,142
(6,369,425) 46,828,569
2,320,953 (4,993,427)
182,985 471,579
(221,644) (686,492)
(1,356,060) (4,219,164
(391,925) (391,925)
534,309 (9,819,429)

- 56,411
(1,041,321 (5,406,909)
(1,230,431 (5,977,421)
(507.012) (15,169,927
32,006,911 160,034,555
965,404 3,861,616
7. 751,523 209,620,970
2022 2021

uss uss
14,267,110 18,845,654
8,146,223 6,057,541
10,859,400 6,281,879
1,407,482 1,959,696
8,809,442 8,690,372
43,489,657 41,835,142
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5

(c)

(@)

(b)

OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONT'D)

Analysis of revenue by market segment

¥

Export Sales Local Sales Total
uss$ uss uss
Year ended 30 September 2022
Semi-finished products 34,660,639 7,029 34,667,668
Confectionery 529,741 8,292,248 8,821,989
35,190,380 8,299,277 43,489,657
Export Sales Local Sales Total
Uss uss uss
Year ended 30 September 2021
Semi-finished products 33,135.67T 9,188 33,144,765
Confectionery 365,587 8,324,790 8,690,377
33,501,164 8,333,978 41,835,142
TAXATION
Income tax expense
2022 2021
uss uss
Deferred tax credit recognised in profit or loss (886,861) (B1,;213)
Deferred tax credit recognised in other comprehensive income (83,332) (3,497.866)
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Loss before tax (12,945,824) (15,169,313)
Income tax using the domestic tax rate (16.91%) (2,188,973) (2,577,266)
Tax effect of:
Non-deductible expenses 291,546 287,320
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses 881,422 (1,535,324)
Recognition of previously unrecognised deductible
temporary differences = 1,249,701
Current year loss for which no deferred tax recognised 118,471 1,311,002
Changes in estimates related to prior years (72,660) (2,314,512
(970,194 (3,579.079)
Effective tax rate 7.49% 23.59%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

6. TAXATION (CONT'D)
© Current tax assets
Balance at Charged to Balance ;t
2022 1/10 Payments profit or loss 30/9
uss uss uss uss
2018 3,263 < & 3,263
2019 3,020 ® - 3,020
2021 11,080 - - 11,080
2022 - 1,936 s 1,936
7,363 1,93 z 19,299
Balance at . Charged to Balance at
2021 1/10 Payments profit or loss 30/9
uss uss uss uss
2018 3,263 : = 3,263
2019 3,020 o = 3,020
2021 11,08 - 11,080
6,283 11,080 = 1:#,863
No provision has been made for current taxin the current year (2021: Nil) as the Company's operational
results adjusted for tax purposes result in a nil chargeable income. The above tax position is subject to
agreement with the tax authorities.
(G Movement in deferred tax balances
Recognised Deferred Deferred
Net in profit Recognised Net tax tax
at 1/10 or loss in OClI at 30/9 assets liabilities
2022 uss uss uss uss uss us$
Property, plant and
equipment 18,870,110 (886,860) (83,332) 17,899,918 - 17,899,918
Employee benefits = # % = = #
Trade and other
receivables - - - - - -
Inventories - - - - - fr
Net tax liabilities 18,870,110 (886.860) (83,332) 17,899,918 - 17,899,918
32
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

6.

(D

(e

®

TAXATION (CONT'D)

Movement in deferred tax balances (cont'd)

¥

s

Recognised Deferred Deferred

Net in profit Recognised Net tax tax

at 1/10 or loss in OCl at 30/9 assets liabilities

2021 uss uss USs$ uss uss uss
Property, plant and

equipment 23,698,980 (1,331,004) (3,497,866) 18,870,111 - 18,870,111

Employee benefits (969,791) 969,791 : - - -

Trade and other

receivables (253,253) 253,253 5 s C

Inventories (26,747) 26,747 - - 2 g

Net tax liabilities 22,449,189 (81,213) (3,497,866) 18,870,111 - 18,870,111

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items, because it is not
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the Company can use the benefits

therefrom.

Gross amount
Us$

Tax losses

18, 335 732

Tax losses carried forward

18,335,732

2022
Tax effect
uss$
3,100,338

3,100,338

Gross amount

uss
16,631,962

16,631,962

2021
Tax effect
uss
2,825,754

2,825,754

Tax lossas for which no deferred tax asset was recognized in the current year expire as follows:

2022 Expiry
uss date
2017 -
2018 2,150,227 2023
2020 3,289,003 2025
2021 6,566,890 2026
2022 6,329,613 2027
18,335,733

2021
uss$

3,765,245
2,150,227
3,289,003
7,427,487

16,631,962

Expiry
date

2022
2023
2025
2026

33
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COCOA P-ROCESSING COMPANY PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

{2

10.

PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT (CONT'D)

The Company's property, plant and equipment have been used as security for loans from a syndicate
of banks led by Absa Ghana Limited (formerly Barclays Bank of Ghana Limited) and loans and overdraft
facility from Prudential Bank Limited. The land and building category of property, plant and equipment
were revalued in December 2019 by Valuation and Investment Associates, who are qualified and
experienced valuers.

Depreciation has been charged as follows:

2022 2021
uUss uss
Cost of sales (note 18) 5,921,130 5,906,586
Selling and distribution costs (note 29) 100,910 13,050
General and administrative expenses (note 30) = 57,785
6,022,040 5977421
INVENTORIES

2022 2021
uss uss
Raw materials 772,999 7,003,219
Packaging materials 2,861,096 2,923,784
Finished goods 12,226,624 13,461,053
Technical spare parts 1,642,832 1,586,455
Fuel and lubricants 155,110 62,645
Work in progress 80,358 1,815,487
Write-down (65,080) (65,080)
17,673,939 26,787,563

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2022 2021
Uss Us$
Trade receivables 5,543,920 9,900,097
Allowance for credit losses 27b (1,099,660) (1,633,511
Net trade receivables 4,444,260 8,266,586
Staff debtors 489,500 643,830
4,933,760 8,910,416

The Company's syndicated loan facility is secured by an assignment of export contracts and

receivables amounting to a maximum of eighty percent (80%) of all receivables.

PREPAYMENTS
2022 2021
uss uss
Prepayments 528,524 435,188

Prepayments include import handling charges deposits as well as prepaid insurance expenses
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COCOA PROCESSING COMPANY PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) -
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 b -

11. FIXED DEPOSITS ON INVESTMENTS

2022 2021
4 y uss uss
Fixed deposit investments 2,707,841 2,644,210

The fixed deposit investments, which are rolled over on a quarterly basis at an interest rate of 2% per
annum, have been used as collateral for the overdraft facility with Prudential Bank Limited. The
Company is restricted from accessing the investment until the overdraft fa cility is discharged.

During the year there were investment additions of US$26,585 (2021: US$71,023 )

12; CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(a) 2022 2021
uss uss
Cash at bank 761,506 1,128,523
Cash on hand 48,952 22,718
Allowance for expected credit losses - -
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement
of financial position 810,458 1,151,241
Fixed deposit investment 2,707,841 2,644,210
Bank overdraft (1,932,743) (1,192,653)
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows 1,585,556 2,602,798
(b) Bank overdraft
Prudential Bank Limited (GHC based facility) (1,932,743) (1,192 653)

In 2021, Prudential Bank Limited renewed the Company's overdraft facility of GH¢6 million to
supplement the Company's waorking capital for a period of twelve months. Interest is charged at 22%
per annum. The facility is secured with a portion of the Company’s fixed deposit of US$1,252,879 at
30 September 2022 (2021: US$1,482,082). At 30 September 2022, the Company did not exceed it
overdraft limit (2021: GHC Nil). Subsequent to the year end, management regularised the balance on
the facility by injecting funds into the overdraft bank account.

13. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2022 2021

Uss uss
Trade payables 16,034,183 84,994,8
30
Taxes and duties 19,137,359 16,355,038
Other payables 12,146,037 11,192,362
47,317,579 112,542,230

Included in trade payables is an amount due to related party balance of US$14,639,337 (2021:
USS 83,501,131).

37



_— e ]

i

COCOA PROCESSING COMPANY PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

14.

LOANS AND BORROWINGS

(a)

e

2022
Balance at 1 October

Drawdowns

Interest charges

Interest repayments

Principal repayments
Converted as deposit for shares
Government subsidy

Effect of changes in exchange
rates

Balance at 30 September .

2021

Balance at 1 October
Drawdowns

Interest charges

Principal repayments

Interest repayments
Government subsidy

Effect of changes in exchange
rates

Balance at 30 September

Analysis of Interest paid

Interest repayments on loans and borrowings

Interest on bank overdrafts

Current
Non-current

(b) Loans and borrowings are classified in the statement of financial position as follows:

Barclays Bank *COCOBOD Prudential
syndicated loans loan Bank Total
uss Uss uss uss
24,813,945 43,586,903 4,517,162 72,918,009
< = 366,366 366,366
2,625,286 1,601,107 679,360 4,905,753
(415,971) (415,971)
(383,171) (383,171)
- (26,641,850) - (26,641,850)
- - (239,744) (239,744
- - (1,761,035 (1,761,035)
27,439,231 18,546,160 2,762,966 48,748,357
Barclays Bank  COCOBOD loan Prudential Total
syndicated loans Bank
uss uss uss uss
22,602,085 41,985,795 4,200,162 68,788,042
- = 186,318 186,318
2,211,860 1,601,108 857,115 4,670,083
- - (162,716) (162,716)
= = (217,019) (217,019)
- @ (208,664) (208,664)
5 = (138,035) (138,035)
24,813,945 43,586,903 4,517,162 72,918,009
2022 2021
uss Uss
415,971 217,019
157,995 158,970
573,966 375,989
2022 2021
uss uss
46,763,057 39,361,581
1,985,300 33,556,428
48,748,357 72,918,009
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 ’

14,

(©

0)

(i)
(i)
(iv)
v)

LOANS AND BORROWINGS (CONT'D)

Details of the loans are as follows:

. i 2022 2021

uss 55

Absa Bank Ghana Limited led Syndicate US Dollar Loan | 10,902,550 9,396,819
Absa Bank Ghana Limited led Syndicate US Dollar Loan I 16,536,681 15,417,127
Ghana Cocoa Board (COCOBOD) Dollar Loan 18,546,160 43,586,903
Prudential Bank Limited Loan 1 588,941 962,855
Prudential Bank Limited Loan 11 2,174,025 3,554,305
48,748,357 72,918,009

This represents the balance on a twenty-two million Euro (Euro 22 million) loan facility from a syndicate
of banks led by Absa Bank Ghana Limited for the expansion of production capacity from 25,000 metric
tonnes to 65,000 metric tonnes. The other participating banks are SG-SSB Bank Limited and Ecobank
Ghana Limited. The loan facility is secured with fixed and floating charges over the assets of the
Company. The syndicated loan is denominated and repayable in Euros over 5 years in equal quarterly
instalments after a one-year moratorium. Interest on the facility is charged at EURIBOR plus 2.5% per
annum. In 2014, the foan was converted to a US dollar-based facility with a revised maturity date of
March 2021 and interest rate was revised to the aggregate of the prevailing 6-month USD LIBOR rate
plus a margin of 9.19%. The loan is yet to be repaid although it matured in March 2021. Management
is engaging the lead bank for an extension to the maturity date.

This represents the outstanding balance on another loan facility of twenty-two million US Dollars (US$22
million) from the syndicate of banks in (i) above led by Absa Bank Ghana Limited for the expansion of
production capacity. The loan facility is secured by an assignment of export contracts and receivables
amounting to a maximum of eighty percent (80%) of all receivables and fixed and floating charges over
the assets of the Company stamped to cover the overall exposure as well as debentures over the debt
service reserve account of the Company. The syndicated loan is denominated and repayable in US Dollars
over 5 years in equal quarterly instalments after a one-year moratorium. Interest on the facility is
charged at LIBOR plus 3.32% per annum. In 2014, the maturity date was revised to March 2021 and the
interest rate revised to the aggregate of the prevailing 6-month USD LIBOR rate plus a margin of 9.19%.
The loan is yet to be repaid although it matured in March 2020. Management is engaging the lead bank
for an extension to the maturity date.

This represents balances on COCOBOD's current account which were convertad into a medium-term loan
in September 2011. The amount of US$$32,022,146 was initially repayable over ten years from
September 2011 with a five-year moratorium on the principal at an interest rate per annum of 5%. The
Company defaulted on the repayment of the principal and interest amounts from October 2016 when
the five-year moratorium expired. On 1 December 2017, COCOBOD substantially modified the terms of
theloan, revising the loan interest from 5% per annum to 1.5% per annum with a moratorium on principal
repayments up to August 2021. Under the modified terms, should the Company default in repayments,
interest rate will revert to 5%. The Company defaulted on the modified terms and interest was reverted
to 5% during the year. The |oan is due to expire on 31 July 2030.

This represents the outstanding balance on a loan facility of US$731,362 (GH¢ 10 million) obtained from
Prudential Bank Limited on 31 October 2021 to augment the Company's working capital requirements.
The loan facility is secured by existing assignment and general charge over all the Company's factory
plant and machinery located at Tema and with a portion of the Company's fixed deposit of US$2,598,825
at 30 September 2022(2021: US$2,088,249). Interest is charged at a rate of 22% per annum which
represents the Ghana Reference Rate of 16.12% plus a risk premium of 5.88% or such other rate as shall
be determined by the Bank from time to time.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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14.

15.

(a)

(b)

LOANS AND BORROWINGS (CONT'D)

This represents the outstanding balance on a loan facility of US$2,803,266 (GH¢ 16 million) obtained
from Prudentigl Bank Limited under the Government of Ghana's Ministry of, Trade and Industry Stimulus
Package Programme for the acguisition of equipment for the Company's confectionery factory.

The loan facility is secured by existing assignment and general charge over all the Company's factory
plant and machinery located at Tema, existing assignment of 10% of the expected revenue from Touton
Cocoa Processing Company, assignment of local and export proceeds from the Company's
confectionery operations and with a portion of the Company's fixed deposit of US$2,598,825 at 30
September 2022 (2021: US$2,088,249). Interest is charged at a rate of 20% per annum which
represents the Ghana Reference Rate of 16.11% plus a risk premium of 3.89%. Under the terms of the
loan agreement, Ministry of Trade and Industry shall pay 50% of the interest on the facility while the
Campany shall pay the remaining 50%. The loan tenor is for a period of 60 months including a six-month
moratorium on both principal and interest payments from the date of disbursement. The loan is
repayable in equal quarterly instalments and will expire on 9 October 2024.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Company contributes to a post-employment defined benefit plan for its employees. The plan was
started on 1 January 2006 and has a 5-year qualifying period. In accordance with the terms of the
plan, the qualifying employees are entitled to receive a lump sum payment based on their salaries at
the time of exit.

2022 2021
uss uss
Defined benefit obligation 2,871,650 4. 097,967

Movement in net defined benefit liabilities

A reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the defined benefit liability and
its components is shown below:

2022 2021
uss$ uss
Balance at 1 October 4,097,967 3.659,007
Included in profit or loss
Current service costs 189,482 233,382
Interest costs 720,320 577,856
Exchange difference (593,501) (126,888)
316,301 684,350
Included in OC{
Remeasurement of (gain)/loss:
Actuarial (gain)/loss (298,464) (170,503)
Exchange difference (1,149,117 3,327
(1,447,581) (167,176)
Other
Benefits paid (95,036) (78,214)
Balance at 30 September 2,871,651 4,097,967
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15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D)
(c) Actuarial assumption

The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date.

2022 2021
uss Uss
Discount rate 22.0% 19.5%
Salary inflation rate 18.0% 15.5%

(d) Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding
other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligations by the amounts shown

below:
Defined benefit obligations

Increase Decrease
30 September 2022 uss uss
Discount rate (1% movement) B (145,237) 160,945
Salary inflation (1% movement) (145,804) 161,362
30 September 2021
Discount rate (1% movement) (226,171) 250,759
Salary inflation (1% movement) 251,411 (227,056)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the
plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

le. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

(a) Authorised shares

2022 2021
uss uss
Ordinary shares of no par value 20,000,000,000 20,000,000,000
Preference share of no par value 1 1
Issued and fully paid
2022 2021
Number Amount Number Amount
'm uss ‘m uss
Ordinary shares for cash 2.038 26,071,559 2,038 26,071,559
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 E *
16. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONT'D)
) Preference shares
. 2022 2021
Number Amount Number Amount
‘m uss - ‘m uss
1 71 1 71
26,071,630 26,071,630
Ghana Cocoa Board, Ministry of Finance and Social Security and National Insurance Trust (SSNIT) hold
special rights redeemable preference shares of no-par value (the Golden Chocolate Share). These
shares are non-voting but entitle the holder to receive notices of and to attend and speak at general
meetings of members of the Company or at any separate meeting of the holders of any class of shares.
On winding up, the shares have a preferential right to a return on capital, the value of which will be
US$71 per share. The shares do not attract dividend.
There are no outstanding shares in treasury and there is no unpaid liability on any share. The holders
of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
(c) Revaluation reserve
2022 2021
uss uss
Balance at 1 October 54,415,410 52,347,147
Change in estimate-deferred tax on 83,332 3,497,866
revaluation surplus
Transfer to retained earnings (1,385,616) (1,429,603)
53,113,126 54,415,410
(d) Fair value reserve
2022 2021
uss ussS
Balance at 1 October 11,732,644 11,732,644
Derecognition of fair value to deposit for shares ' (4,691,433) -
Balance at 30 September 7.041,211 11,732,644
(e) Deposit for shares

On 30th September 2022, the Board of Directors for Ghana Cocoa Board agreed to a proposal from
the Board of Cocoa Processing Company Plc to convert USD 87,000,000 of debt owed to Ghana Cocoa
Board to Class B shares. The US$87m debt converted to equity consisted of the principal portion of a
long-term loan granted to Cocoa Processing Company Plc of US$32m and USS55m being trade
payables.

However, the Company has not yet completed the process of registering the new shares with the
Registrar of Companies as required by the Companies Act 2019, Act 992 hence the conversion is
recognised as deposit for shares rather than as actual shares.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 -

16. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONT'D)

(6)) Retained earnings

This represents the residual 6f cumulative annual results, realised portions of the revaluation reserve
and loan interest contribution by government. Please refer to the statement in changes in equity for

more information.
17. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

(a) Revenue streams

Sale of goods
(i) Local sales
(i) Export sales

Timing of revenue recognition
Goods transferred at a point in time

2022 2021

uss uss
8,299,277 8,333,978
35,190,380 33,501,164
43,489,657 41,835,142
43,489,657 41,835,142
43,489,657 41,835,142

Tolling revenue represents fees charged on cocoa beans processed on behalf of third parties. There

was no tolling revenue for 2022 (2021: Nil).

(b) Performance obligations and revenue recognition policies

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The Company
recognises revenue when it transfers control over a product to a customer.

The following table provides information about the nature and timing of the satisfaction of performance
obligations in contracts with customers, including significant payment terms, and the related revenue

recognition policies.

Nature and timing of satisfaction of

Revenue recognition policy

Most sales are cash based. Credit sales
are made against post-dated cheques to
cover amounts owed and bank guarantees
provided by the customers.

Type of product | performance obligations, including

significant payment terms
Local sales Customers obtain control of products Revenue is recognised when the
(Semi-finished when the goods are delivered to and have | goods are delivered and have been
products, been accepted at the customer's accepted by customers at their
confectionery premises. Invoices are generated at that | premises.
products) point in time.

The contracts held with the
Company's customers do not permit
the customer to return goods
purchased from the Company.

Customers obtain control of sales made to
export third parties when the products

Export sales
(Semi-finished

products, are loaded on-board the ship and
confectionery confirmed by the bill of lading. This
products) establishes a present obligation for the

customer to pay the Company, and there
would have been a transfer of legal title.

Revenue is recognised when the
products are loaded on-board the ship
and confirmed by the bill of lading.

The contracts held with the
Company's customers do not permit
the customer to return goods
purchased from the Company.
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18.

19.

20a.

COST OF SALES

This comprises raw materials, packaging materials and production costs as follows:

»

Raw and packaging materials consumed
Depreciation

Direct Labour (notes 22)

Other production overheads

OTHER INCOME

Sale of sacks, scraps and other items
Net Exchange gain

Discount received on sales tax*
Government subsidy

2022 2021
Uss uss
33,012,113 34,018,643
5,921,130 5,906,586
1,197,153 1,102,086
7,233,572 5,801,254
47,363,968 46,828,569
8,223 66,094
1,080,046 116,891
174,874 79,930
239,743 208,664
1,502,88 471,579

* Under the new Benchmark policy introduced by the Government of Ghana during the year, the
Company received a 50% discount on all sales taxes filed with Ghana Revenue Authority with effect

from 04 April 2021.

LOSS BEFORE TAX

Loss before tax is stated after charging the following:

Depreciation recognised in cost of sales

Depreciation recognized in selling and distribution expenses
Depreciation recognised in general and administrative
expenses

Auditor's remuneration

Directors' remuneration

Impairment (reversal)/loss on trade receivables

20b. Unrealised exchange differences

21.

Trade receivables

Trade payables
Borrowings

Cash and cash equivalents
Employee benefit

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Directors’ fees and allowances

2022
Note uss

18 5,921,130
31 .

32 100,910
32 37,000
21 91,725

27(@)i)  (533,851)

2022
us$
625,605
(336,538)
(1,761,035)
120,849
(593,501)

(1,944,620)

2022
uss
91,725

2021
uss

5,906,586
13,050

57,785
37,000
74,456
391,925

2021
uss
296,598
12,760
(138,035)
38,229
(126,888)

82,664
2021

uss$
74,456
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I 22, PERSONNEL EXPENSES

| 23.

24,

Salaries »
Social security contributions
Provident fund contributions
Employee benefit abligation

Other costs

2022
uss
2,756,512
206,172
114,448
189,482
1,372,288

4,638,902

2021

uss
2,480,386
220,499
121,355
233,382
1,202,578

4,258,200

Other costs include canteen, transportation, medical expenses efc. Personnel expenses have been
apportioned to cost of sales, selling and distribution and general and administrative expenses.

Employee categories
The number of employees at year end was as follows:

Junior staff
Senior staff
Management staff
Temporary staff

FINANCE INCOME

Interest income
Interest income arises from interest earned on investments

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on loans and borrowings
Interest on bank overdrafts
Unwinding of discount on ESB

2022
uss
4,905,753
157,995
__ 720,319

5,784,067

577,856

5,406,909
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“25.

26.

(a)

(b)

LOSS PER SHARE

Basic and diluted loss per share

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share at 30 September 2022 was based on the Ios:s
attributable to ordinary shareholders and a weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares.

There were no potential dilutive ordinary shares. Loss per share is calculated as follows:

Loss attributable to ordinary shareholders (basic and diluted)

2022
uss
Loss for the year attributable to
the owners of the Company 963
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic and diluted)
2022
Number

Issued ordinary shares at beginning 2,038,074,176
Effect of conversion of debt to equity -

2021
uss

1 00
2021
Number

2,038,074,176

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 30 September 2.038,074,176

Basic loss per share (0.0059)
Diluted loss per share (0.0059)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Parent and Ultimate Controlling Party

2.038,074,176

(0.0074)
(0.0074)

The Company is a subsidiary of Ghana Cocoa Board, a corporate body domiciled in Ghana, established
by the Ghana Cocoa Board Act, 1984 (PNDCL 81). The ultimate controlling party of the Company is the
Government of Ghana. The Company purchases raw cocoa beans from Ghana Cocoa Board through

Cocoa Marketing Company Limited, a subsidiary of Ghana Cocoa Board.

Transactions during the year

The value of transactions between the Company and its related entities during the year was as follows:

2022
uss
Sale of goods
Ghana Cocoa Board 312,308
Cocoa Marketing Company Limited 116,630
428,938
Purchase of raw cocoa beans
Cocoa Marketing Company Limited 20,568,228
Others
Interest on loans and borrowings - Ghana Cocoa
Board 1,601,107
Interest subsidy on loans and borrowings -
Government of Ghana 239,743

2021
uss

193,605
358,622

552 227

37,480,449

1,601,107

208,664
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 -

26. © RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (CONT'D)

(c) Outstanding balances relating to transactions with related parties are as follow:

*
Due from related parties

Ghana Cocoa Board
Cocoa Marketing Company Limited

2022
uss

96,239
18,291

114,530

2021
uss

158,494
29,620

188,114

Amount due from related parties emanated from normal sales transactions and are subject to the
Company's credit policy terms. All outstanding balances are to be settled in cash.

Due to related parties

Ghana Cocoa Board
Loans and barrowings (note 14(a))
Accrued interest (note 14(@))

Cocoa Marketing Company Limited
Trade payables (note 13)

(d) Transactions with key management personnel

2022
uss

18,546,160

18,546,160

14,639,337

33,185,497

2021
uss

26,641,850
16,945,053

43,586,903

83,501,131

127,088,034

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Company directly or indirectly including any director of
the Company, whether executive or otherwise. Key management personnel compensation during the

year comprised the following:

Short term employee benefits (included in personnel expenses)

Defined benefits plan (included in employee benefit obligations)

Non-executive directors’ compensation comprised the following

Directors' fees and allowances

2022 2021
uss uss
245,240 215,219
200,050 194,199
445,290 409,418
2022 2021
uss uss
74,4 36,795
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27.

t)

®

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk management »
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

o credit risk
o liguidity risk
o market risk

This note presents information about the Company’'s exposure to each of the above risks, the
Company's objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risks and the Company's
management of capital.

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's
risk management framework. The Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring compliance with the
Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and for reviewing the adequacy of the risk
management framework in relation to risks faced by the Company.

The Audit Committee gains assurances on the effectiveness of internal control and risk management
from summary information relating to the management of identified risks: detailed reviews of the
effectiveness of management of selected key risks; results of management's self-assessment processes
over internal control; and independent work carried out by the Audit and Risk function, which provide
the audit committee and management with results of procedures carried out on key risks, including
extent of compliance with standards set on governance; and assurances over the quality of the
Company's internal control.

The Company also has a control, compliance and ethics function in place, which monitors compliance
with internal procedures and processes and assesses the effectiveness of internal controls.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse risks faced by the
Company, set appropriate risk limits and controls, and monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions,
products and services offered. Through training, standards and procedures, the Company aims to
maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment, in which all employees understand their
roles and obligations.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial

instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the Company's
receivables from customers. The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk was as follow:

2022 2021

uss uss

Trade and other receivables 4,933,760 8,910,416
Fixed depasit on investments 2,707,841 2,644,210
Bank balances 810,458 1,151,241
8,452,059 12,705,867

48



EN N EE BN PR EE BN BN B O EE BN W B P B

== — ] == L] Lol [ | | =

COCOA PROCESSING COMPANY PLC

NOTES TO THE EINANCIAL STATEMENTS. (CONTINUED) i
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

27.

®

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)
Credit risk (cont'd)
Trade and other receivables

The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The Company generally trades with pre-defined and selected customers. Credit exposure
on trade receivable is covered by customers issuing post-dated cheques to cover amounts owed and
bank guarantees provided by the customers. The Company's exposure to credit risk on other
receivables mainly relates to receivables from the Company’s employees in respect of loans granted
them. The Company reviews the balances on a periodic basis taking into consideration factors such as
continued business or employment relationships and ability to offset amount against transactions due
to the parties. Where such relationship does not exist, the amounts are impaired.

At 30 September 2022, the exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables by type of customer
or counterparty was as follows:

2022 2021

uss uss

Distributors 327,550 794,178
Individuals and companies 4,984,303 8,650,657
Employees 232,067 455,242
5,543,920 9,900,097

Expected credit loss assessment for trade receivables

The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses (ECLS) for
trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. The ECLs are calculated using a 'roll rate’ method
based on the probability of a receivable progressing through successive stages of delinquency to write-
off. The ECLs are based on actual credit loss experience over past years. These rates are multiplied by
scalar factors to reflect differences between economic conditions during the period over which the
historical data has been collected, current conditions and the Company's view of economic conditions
over the expected lives of the receivables.

Expected credit loss assessment for trade receivables

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and ECL for trade receivables
as at 30 September 2022.

2022
Impairment Credit
Weighted- Gross allowance impaired
average

loss rate - % uss uss
Current (not past due) 3.00 4,487,708 134,631 No
31-90 days past due 34.97 106,978 37,415 No
91-270 days past due 84.82 142,468 120,848 No
More than 270 days 100 806,766 806,766 Yes

5,543,920 1,099,660
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274 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)

(i Credit risk (cont'd)

Expected credit loss assessment for trade receivables (cont’d)

2021
Impairment Credit
Weighted-average Gross allowance impaired

loss rate - % uss uss

Current (not past due) 3 7,659,970 229,799 No
31-90 days past due 34.97 1,204,565 421,290 No
91-270 days past due 84.82 350,170 297,030 No
More than 270 days 100 685,392 685,392 Yes

9,900,097 1633511

The Company's syndicated loan facility is secured by an assignment of export contracts and receivables
amounting to a maximum of eighty percent (80%) of all receivables.

Movements in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables was as follows.

2022 2021

uss uss

Balance at 1 October 1,633,511 1,241,586
Impairment (reversal)/loss recognised (533,851) 391,925
Balance at 30 September 1,099,660 1.6 1

Other receivables

No impairment has been recognised in respect of other receivables as the amount of impairment is
considered insignificant due to the company's right to offset any unpaid portions against amount due
to employees at the time of exit.

Cash and bank balances

The Company held cash and bank balance of US$810,458 at 30 September 2022 (2021:
USS$1,151,241) which represents its maximum exposure. The bank balances are held with banks that
are regulated by the Central Bank. The Company considers that its bank balances have low credit risk
and hence no impairment has been recognised with respect to these in the current year (2021: Nil).

(i) Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company would either not have sufficient financial resources available
to meet all of its obligations and commitments as they fall due or can access them only at excessive
cost. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it maintains adequate liquidity to
meet its liabilities as and when they fall due. The Company assesses its debt position every month. The
Company also monitors the level of expected cash inflows on trade and other receivables on a daily
basis. The Company however has a net current liability position. Measures have been put in place as
disclosed in Note 30 to manage this position.
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(i

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)

Liguidity risk (cont'd)

b

¥

The following are contractual maturities of financial assets and liabilities:

Contractual
cash flows
Carrying émths More than
amount Total or less 6-12mths 12mths
uss uss uss uss Uss
Year ended 30 September 2022
Non-derivative financial assets
Trade and other receivables* 4,933,760 4,933,760 4,933,760 : -
Fixed deposit investments 2,707,841 2,707,841 37,769 2,670,072 -
Cash and bank 810,458 810,458 810,458 = -
Balance at 30 September 2022 8,452,059 8,452,059 5,781,987 2,670,072 -
Non-derivative financial
liabilities .
Trade and other payables* 28,178,796 28,178,796 28,178,796
Bank overdraft 1,932,743 1,932,743 - 1,932,743
COCOBQD loan 18,546,160 18,546,160 - 18,546,160
Bank loans 30,202,197 36,230,330 8,166,017 15,783,981 12,280,332
Balance at 30 September 2022
78,859,896 84,888,029 36,344,813 36,262,884 12,280,332
Non-derivative financial assets
Trade and other receivables 8,910,416 8,910,416 8,910,416 & -
Fixed deposit investments 2,644,210 2,644,210 45,385 2,598,825 e
Cash and bank 1,151,241 1,151,241 1,151,241 4
Balance at 30 September 2021 12,705,867 12,705,857 10,107,042 2,598,825 %
Non-derijvative financial
liabilities
Trade and other payables* 96,066,189 96,066,189 96,066,189 = =
Bank overdraft 1,192,653 1,192,653 1,192,653 =
COCOBOD loan 43,586,903 32,022,146 3,877,652 5,428,712 22,715,782
Bank loans 29,610,286 46,141,444 8,166,017 13,306,203 24,669,224
Balance at 30 September 2021 170,456,031 175,422,432 108,109,858 19,927,568 47,385,006

*Statutory obligations amounting to US$19,137,359 (2021: US$16,355,038) have been excluded

from trade and other payables.
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COCOA PROCESSING COMPANY PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

27.

(i)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)

Market risk

¥ ¥
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates
will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of
market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimising the return.

Foreign currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk on sales, purchases and borrowings that are denominated in
a currency other than the functional currency of the Company, the US Dollar. The Company has no
policy on its exposure to foreign currency risk relating to its financial assets and financial liabilities.
Currency risk arises when future commercial transactions or recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s functional currency. '

Included in the statement of financial position are the following amounts denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the Company.

2022 2021
GH¢ Euro GH¢ Euro
Assets
Trade and other receivables 10,844,727 35,153 12,022,439 75,133
Bank balances 1,273,251 67,434 1,611,891 73,590
Liabilities
Trade and other payables (17,911,989) (154,355) (12,805,400) (214,613)

The following significant exchange rates applied during the year:

Average rate Reporting rate
2022 2021 2022 2021
GHC¢C 7.7356 5.6880 9.6048 5.8663
Euro 0.9428 0.9926 1.0220 0.8635

Sensitivity analysis on currency risks

The following table shows the effect of a strengthening or weakening of USS against all other currencies
on the Company's profit or loss. This sensitivity analysis indicates the potential impact in profit or loss
based upon the foreign currency exposures recorded at 30 September and it does not represent actual
or future gains or losses. The sensitivity analysis is based on the percentage difference between the
closing exchange rate and the average exchange rate per currency recognised in the course of the
respective financial year.

A strengthening/weakening of the US Dollar by the rates shown in the table, against the following
currencies at 30 September would have increased/(decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts
shown below.
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COCOA PROCESSING COMPANY PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)
(i) Market risk (cont'd)

3

Sensitivity analysis on currency risks (cont'd)

This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

As of
30 September 2022
In USS Profit or loss Profit or loss
impact: impact:
% Change Strengthening  Weakening
GH¢ £63.7 2,406,072 (2,406,072)
Euro +18.40 2,352 (2,352)

Interest rate risk

% Change
+3.20
+3.21

202

1

Profit or loss Profit or
impact: loss impact:
Strengthening  Weakening

2,932 (2,932)
6 (6)

The Company has no policy of apportioning its exposure to interest rates between fixed rate and
variable rate. At the end of the reporting period the interest rate profile of the Company's interest-

bearing financial instruments was as follows:

Nominal amount

2022
uss
Fixed rate instruments
Bank overdraft 1,932,373
Loans and borrowings 21,309,126
Variable rate instruments
Bank loan 27,439,231

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instrument

2021
uss

1,192,653
48,104,064

24,813,945

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the end of the reporting period would

not affect profit or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 200 basis points in interest rates at the end of the reporting period would have
increased/(decreased) profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other

variables, in particular foreign currency rates remain constant.

As of 30 2022 2021
September
Bisis Profit and Loss Pr?_f!)tsind
golnt impact; Equity % impact: Equity
ehaign Uss$'000 US$'000  Change US$'000 USS'000
ﬁ;ﬂgCHEd £33.95 8,912 +8,912 +0.076 +168 +168
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COCOA PROCESSING COMPANY PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

27.

(iii)

28.

29.

30.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)

Market risk (cont'd)

3 ¥

Capital management

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Capital consists of equity. The Board of
Directors monitors return on capital as well as the level of dividends distributed to ordinary
shareholders.

There have been no changes to what the entity manages as capital. The strategy for capital
maintenance as well as externally imposed capital requirements from the previous year remain the
same. There are no externally imposed capital requirements.

The Board monitors capital using a ratio of net debt to equity. Net debt is calculated as total liahilities
less cash and cash equivalents. Equity comprises all components of equity.

The Company's net debt to equity ratio at 30 September 2022 was as follows:

2022 2021

UsS USS

Total liabilities 118,770,247 209,620,971
Cash and cash equivalents (810,458) (1.151.241)
Net debt 117,959,789 208,469,730
Equity 22,194,101 (49,586,415)
Net debt to equity ratio at 30 September 5.31 4,20

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
There were no contingent liabilities at year-end (2021 Nil).
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments in relation to property, plant and equipment was US$1.27 million at year-end
(2021: USS 319,480).

GOING CONCERN CONSIDERATION

The Company incurred a loss of US$12.6m (2021: US$15.09m) for the year ended 30 September
2022, and as of that date its current liabilities exceeded its current assets by US$69.34m (2021:
US$113.15m).

A substantial part of the Company’s liabilities is due to a syndicate of banks led by Absa and Prudential
Banks, US$S27.44m and US$2.76m respectively. During the year, the Company defaulted on the
principal and interest repayment to respective banks.

The Company's loss-making position is significantly driven by unavailability of cocoa beans to process
due to insufficient cashflow during the year.

COCOBOD as at 30 September 2022 has converted loan of US$32m and trade accounts payable of
USS$55 as deposit for shares pending finalisation of a legal requirement to recognise it as stated
capital.
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COCOA PROCESSING COMPANY PLC

NOTES JO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

-

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

30.

31.

32,

GOING CONCERN CONSIDERATION (CONT'D)

The Directors have been in discussions with Africa Export-Import Bank (Afreximbank) to obtain a
USS$86.7m loan facility. Management plans to use this loan to settle amounts due to the syndicate of
banks, support its working capital requirements and retool its property, plant, and equipment to
expand production capacity. Management expects the agreement to be signed by December 2023 and
the first tranche disbursed by January 2024. The ability of the company to return to profitability and
also settle the liabilities due within twelve months is dependent of the Afreximbank loan. Af the date
of this report, discussions with Afreximbank have not yet been finalised.

The above conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern and therefore, may be unable to realize its
assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

The Directors have considered the following matters, in combination with the above m|t|gat|on plans,

in making the going concern assumption:

- Resumption of cocoa beans supply by COCOBOD on regular basis. .

> New turnaround strategies - reduction of cost, investment in infrastructure, expansion of
revenue base and product market.

The financial statements are prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going
concern. This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that
the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities will occur in the ordinary course of
business.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION COSTS

2022 2021
uss uss
Personnel expenses (note 22) 141,657 111,094
Wharfage handling charges 350,150 185,260
Carriage-Forklifts/Trucks 24,326 36,425
Depot expenses 36,258 61,303
Vehicle running costs 80,370 71,651
Advertising expenses 171,813 207,709
Depreciation (note 7) = 13,050
804,574 686,492

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
2022 2021
uss uss
Personnel expenses (note 22) 3,300,092 3,045,020
AGM expenses 31,663 28,080
Auditor's remuneration 37,000 37,000
Directors' remuneration 91,725 74,456
Insurance 89,501 89,100
Rent and security 140,212 182,601
Professional and consultancy costs 60,457 71,702
Bank charges 83,738 66,393
Office-related and sundry expenses 173,464 115,125
Other cost 144,400 161,783
Water and electricity 300,008 280,000
Donations ' 16,512 10,119
Depreciation (note 7) 100,910 57,785
4,569,682 4,219,164
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